West
Yorkshire

WEST YORKSHIRE AND YORK INVESTMENT
COMMITTEE

MEETING TO BE HELD AT 11.00 AM ON WEDNESDAY, 8 MAY 2019
IN COMMITTEE ROOM A, WELLINGTON HOUSE, 40-50 WELLINGTON
STREET, LEEDS

AGENDA

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
2. DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS

3. EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE EXCLUSION OF THE
PRESS AND PUBLIC

1. To highlight Appendices 1 and 2 to Agenda Item 7 which officers have
identified as containing exempt information within the meaning of
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972, and where officers
consider that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs
the public interest in disclosing the information, for the reasons outlined

in the report.

2. To consider whether or not to accept the officers’ recommendation in
respect of the above information as set out in paragraph 4.1 of Agenda
Item 7.

3. If the recommendation is accepted, to formally pass the following
resolution:-

RESOLVED - That in accordance with paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
to the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting
during consideration of Appendices 1 and 2 to Agenda ltem 7 on the grounds
that it is likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted or the
nature of the proceedings, that if members of the press and public were
present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information and for the
reasons set out in the report that in all the circumstances of the case, the
public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information.



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE WEST YORKSHIRE AND

YORK INVESTMENT COMMITTEE HELD ON 12 APRIL 2019
(Pages 1-4)

CAPITAL PROGRAMME UPDATE
(Pages 5 - 12)

CAPITAL SPENDING AND PROJECT APPROVALS
(Pages 13 - 52)

LEEDS CITY COLLEGE GROUP PROPOSED ACQUISITION OF

HARROGATE COLLEGE
(Pages 53 - 60)

Signed:
Bl

Managing Director
West Yorkshire Combined Authority




Agenda Item 4

West
Yorkshi.re

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE
WEST YORKSHIRE AND YORK INVESTMENT COMMITTEE
HELD ON FRIDAY, 12 APRIL 2019 AT COMMITTEE ROOM A -
WELLINGTON HOUSE, LEEDS

Present:

Councillor lan Gillies
Councillor Barry Collins
Councillor Denise Jeffery
Councillor Richard Lewis
Councillor Peter McBride
Councillor Alex Ross-Shaw

In attendance:
Richard Thorpe

Melanie Corcoran
Angela Taylor
James Bennett
Heather Waddington
Patrick Bowes
Seamus McDonnell
Ruth Chaplin

Ben Kearns

63. Apologies for Absence

City of York Council
Calderdale Council
Wakefield Council
Leeds City Council
Kirklees Council
Bradford Council

Ministry of Housing, Communities &
Local Government (minute 68)
West Yorkshire Combined Authority
West Yorkshire Combined Authority
West Yorkshire Combined Authority (minute 67)
West Yorkshire Combined Authority (minute 68)
West Yorkshire Combined Authority (minute 68)
West Yorkshire Combined Authority (minute 68)
West Yorkshire Combined Authority
West Yorkshire Combined Authority

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Peter Box and Roger
Marsh and it was agreed that Councillor lan Gillies take the chair.

64. Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

There were no pecuniary interests declared by members at the meeting.

65. Exempt Information - Possible Exclusion of the Press and Public

Resolved: That in accordance with paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to
the Local Government Act 1072, the public be excluded from the meeting
during consideration of Appendices 1 and 2 to Agenda Item 6 on the grounds
that it is likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted or the
nature of the proceedings, that if members of the press and public were



66.

67.

present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information and for the
reasons set out in the report that in all the circumstances of the case, the
public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information.

Minutes of the Meeting of the West Yorkshire and York Investment
Committee held on 13 March 2019

Resolved: That the minutes of the West Yorkshire and York Investment
Committee held on 13 March 2019 be approved and signed by the Chair.

Capital Spending and Project Approvals

The Committee considered a report on proposals for the progression of, and
funding for, a number of West Yorkshire Combined Authority supported
projects, including West Yorkshire plus Transport Fund (Transport Fund) and
Growth Fund at stages 1, 2 and 3 of the Combined Authority’s assurance
process.

Members discussed the proposals for the progression of the following two
corridor improvement schemes which were detailed in the submitted report:

e A6177 Great Horton Road/Horton Grange Road
e A6177 Thornton Road/Toller Lane

Copies of the business case summaries for the schemes were attached at
Appendices 2 and 3 of the submitted report.

The Committee was also advised of the following three decisions made
through delegations to the Combined Authority’s Managing Director since the
last meeting:

e Halifax Town Centre — Northgate House
e A650 Bradford to Keighley Corridor (Hard Ings Road)
e Leeds Enterprise Zone Power Solution

Details of the schemes were outlined in the submitted report.
Resolved:

(i) That in respect of the A6177 Great Horton Road/Horton Grange Road,
the Investment Committee recommends to the Combined Authority:

(@) That the A6177 Great Horton Road / Horton Grange Road
scheme proceeds through decision point 3 and work commences
on activity 4 (full business case).

(b)  That an indicative approval to the total project value of £4.205
million is given from the West Yorkshire plus Transport Fund with
full approval to spend being granted once the scheme has
progressed through the assurance process to decision point 5



(c)

(d)

(e)

(full business case with finalised costs).

That additional development costs of £584,007 are approved in
order to progress the scheme to full business case with finalised
costs (decision point 5), taking the total project approval to
£809,007.

That the Combined Authority enters in to a funding agreement
with Bradford Council for expenditure of up to £809,007 from the
West Yorkshire plus Transport Fund.

That future approvals are made in accordance with the approval
pathway and approval route outlined in the submitted report,
including at decision points 4 and 5 through a delegation to the
Combined Authority’s Managing Director following a
recommendation by the Combined Authority’s Programme
Appraisal Team. This will be subject to the scheme remaining
within the tolerances outlined in the report.

In respect of the A6177 Thornton Road/Toller Lane Corridor
Improvement Scheme, the Investment Committee recommends to the
Combined Authority:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

That the A6177 Thornton Road/Toller Lane scheme proceeds
through decision point 3 and work commences on activity 4 (full
business case).

That an indicative approval to the total project value of £9.662
million is given from the West Yorkshire plus Transport Fund with
full approval to spend being granted once the scheme has
progressed through the assurance process to decision point 5
(full business case with finalised costs).

That additional development costs of £721,670 are approved in
order to progress the scheme to decision point 5 (full business
case with finalised costs) taking the total project approval to
£946,670.

That the Combined Authority enters into an addendum to the
existing funding agreement with Bradford Council for additional
expenditure of up to £721,670 from the West Yorkshire plus
Transport Fund, taking total value of the funding agreements to
£946,670.

That future approvals are made in accordance with the approval
pathway and approval route outlined in the submitted report
including at decision points 4 and 5 through a delegation to the
Combined Authority’s Managing Director following a
recommendation by the Combined Authority’s Programme
Appraisal Team. This will be subject to the scheme remaining
within the tolerances outlined in the report.



68.

69.

70.

Councillors Gillies and Collins

The Committee noted that it was Councillors Collins and Gillies last meeting
as they were standing down as elected members in May. Members thanked
them for their hard work and contributions to the Combined Authority and its
Committees.

European Structural and Investment Funds - Sustainable Urban
Development (ESIF SUD)

The Committee considered a report on an outline application for Sustainable
Urban Development (SUD), part of the European Structural and Investment
Funds (ESIF) Programme and to provide advice to the Combined Authority, in
its role as the Intermediate Body (IB).

It was reported that a Call for SUD outline applications was published on 10
January 2019 and closed on 22 February 2019 and one outline application
had been received.

Members considered the outline assessment which was attached at exempt
Appendix 2 together with a covering note at exempt Appendix 1. They agreed
the advice and the respective conditions which would be considered by the
Combined Authority at its next meeting to be held on 25 April 2019.

Resolved: That the Investment Committee recommend to the Combined
Authority the advice contained within the outline application for the
Sustainable Urban Development, part of the European Structural and
Investment Funds Programme, as set out in the exempt Appendix 2.

Draft Minutes of the Business Investment Panel held on 7 March 2019

Resolved: That the draft minutes of the Business Investment Panel held on 7
March 2019 be noted.



Agenda Iltem 5

West
Yorkshire

Combined
Authority

Reportto:  West Yorkshire and York Investment Committee

Date: 8 May 2019
Subject: Capital Programme Update
Director: Melanie Corcoran, Director of Delivery

Author(s):  Lynn Cooper, Chris Moses

Is this a key decision? 1 Yes No

Is the decision eligible for call-in by Scrutiny? 1 Yes No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information or

appendices? O Yes No

If relevant, state paragraph number of Schedule 12A, Local
Government Act 1972, Part 1:

1 Purpose of this report

1.1 To update the Committee on progress made on the implementation of the
West Yorkshire Combined Authority’s capital programme. The report provides
a more detailed update on the Growth Deal programme and, as part of
selected updates on other capital funding programmes, it provides information
on the progress made on the City Connect programme.

2 Information

Capital Programme

2.1 Table 1 below sets out the latest outturn forecast and actual spend at quarter
3 2018/19 (previously reported to the Investment Committee on 13 March
2019). Significant expenditure is forecast in the final quarter of the financial
year, this is typical of local authority capital programmes where expenditure
tends to be heavily weighted to the end of the year.



2.2

2.3

24

2.5

Table 1

Actual

2018/19 |Expenditure up

Outturn to Quarter 3
Capital Programme Forecast 2018/19 %
Growth Deal (including West Yorkshire Transport Fund) |£102,080,000 £47,372,370| 46.4%
Leeds Public Transport Investment Programme £10,115,000 £4,210,152] 41.6%
Local Transport Plan Integrated Transport Block and
National Productivity Investment Fund £8,081,000 £6,271,000] 77.6%
Highways Maintenance Block and Highways Incentive
Fund £28,442,000 £22,393,000] 78.7%
Pothole Action Fund / Highways / Flood Resilience £9,267,000 £4,310,000] 46.5%
Cycle City Ambition Grant £8,500,000 £7,626,000] 89.7%
West Yorkshire Cycling and Walking Fund £1,304,000 £800,000] 61.3%
Cycle Safety Grant £470,000 £0] 0.0%
CCAG Top Up £210,000 £0] 0.0%
Clean Vehicle Technology Fund £1,368,000 £82,000] 6.0%
Ultra Low Emissions Vehicles £978,000 £15,000] 1.5%
West Yorkshire Broadband £5,769,000 £3,366,100] 58.3%
Growing Places Fund £1,350,000 £1,000,000] 74.1%
Warm Homes £1,369,000 £411,234] 30.0%
Corporate Projects - Accommodation £335,000 £112,272]| 33.5%
Corporate Projects - Technology Strategy £1,570,000 £208,608]| 13.3%
Total £181,208,000 £98,177,736| 54.2%

Growth Deal Programme

Expenditure

A full review of Growth Deal spend forecasts is being undertaken for this
financial year and the remaining two years of the Growth Deal. All project
sponsors have been requested to provide this information and responses are

currently being collated.

Quarter four claims are currently being processed, it is expected that the final

expenditure and final outturn figures will achieve circa 90% of the spend target

of £102 million.

Performance

The attached Appendix 1 provides a breakdown of all projects within the
programme identifying those completed by the end of 2018/19 and those due
to start in 2019/20. To date 22 projects have been completed 14 (64%) of
these are economic development projects, the remaining eight (36%) are

Transport Fund projects.

Quarter four claims are currently being processed, it is expected that the final

expenditure and final outturn figures will achieve circa 90% of the spend target

of £102 million.




2.6

2.7

2.8

29

2.10

It is currently expected that 24 Growth Deal projects will commence delivery in
2019/20, these have a combined project value of £258 million. As the Growth
Deal programme moves forward spend swings from being mostly on economic
development projects over to Transport Fund projects. 16 of the 24 projects
due to commence in 2019/20 are Transport Fund projects, these have a total
value in excess of £210 million (81% of the total £258 million of projects due to
commence in 2019/20).

Activity on the Enterprise Zones is also beginning to increase with three sites
expecting to start on site in 2019/20. These are the Aire Valley Power
Enhancement as well as two sites in the M62 Enterprise Zone: Gain Lane and
Parry Lane. These projects have a combined total value of £15.7 million (also
included in the £258 million total).

Outputs

Table 2 below details the target outputs for the Growth Deal programme and
summarises the forecast outputs across projects (it should be noted that
outputs have not been forecast by all projects currently within the programme,
projects will finalise output forecasts as they reach decision point 4 of the
Assurance Framework).

Table 2

Target (includes Remaining
Growth Deals 1,2 Achieved to forecast
Output and 3) date 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021-25

Total

New jobs 19,595 6,246 300 2,210 10,443 7,361

26,560

Jobs safeguarded (flood resilience programme) 11,100 22,000 0 2,732 1,116 2,769

28,617

Houses 2,300 254 0 285 854 1,305

2,698

Public / private investment (match funding) £1,031,000,000] £432,261,840| £91,845,292| £224,407,858| £185,871,468 £0] £934,386,458

Based on current project forecasts new jobs is expected to be achieved by the
monitoring deadline of 2024/25. The jobs safeguarded target relates only to
the flood resilience programme. This target has already been achieved in full
by the Leeds Flood Resilience projects. Whilst public/private investment
(match funding) is not currently forecast to achieve the target there is
confidence that once further project forecasts are added to the above table
this target will be achieved in full.

The target for new houses is 2,300 the achievement of this is more
challenging within the timescale. This is because whilst housing sites are
being enabled using the Growth Deal monies these sites still need to be
developed with new housing and this is subject to private sector delivery.
Whilst the forecast achievement by March 2025 from current projects is 2,698,
slippage is expected against the annual forecasts. Only 77 houses been built
so far by existing housing projects, the remaining 177 have been achieved by
unlocking housing sites through schemes funded by the Transport Fund. In
order to address concerns Combined Authority officers are currently reviewing
individual sites along with district partners to establish the clear milestones
and re-profiling of outputs. Further housing sites will be enabled through
Transport Fund projects but as many of these projects are yet to progress
through the assurance process full forecasts have not been included in the
above table.




2.1

212

213

2.14

Annual Review

The formal response to the Growth Deal Annual Conversation review, which
assessed the performance of the LEP and the Combined Authority (as
accountable body) has now been received. Government changed the
performance categories this year and has indicated that the scores cannot
therefore be compared with those from 2017. The LEP scored ‘Good’ across
all three categories of governance, strategy and delivery.

City Connect

The City Connect programme was developed in response to the strong desire
for greater participation in cycling across the region. Two successful bids to
the Department for Transport (DfT) for Cycle City Ambition Grant Fund
(CCAGQG), secured £40 million for investment in high quality cycling and walking
infrastructure across West Yorkshire and York. Further applications for
funding through, for example, DfT’s Cycling and Walking Grant, Cycle Safety
Fund, Cycling and Walking to Work Fund and allocation of Local Transport
Plan (LTP) funding increased the available budget to just over £59 million.
Indicative approval has recently been granted for a further £14 million
extension to the programme to deliver eight projects to be funded from the
West Yorkshire plus Transport Fund and residual CCAG budget.

The full programme is branded as CityConnect and is being delivered in three
phases:

o Phase 1: Leeds Bradford Cycle Superhighway — a 23km mostly
segregated cycle route; implementation of 20mph zones along the Cycle
Superhighway corridor; Leeds Liverpool Canal Towpath — towpath
surface improvements between Kirkstall (Leeds) and Shipley.

o Phase 2: Introduction of on-highway segregated cycle routes in Leeds
City Centre; Canal Road in Bradford along with improvements to
stretches of four canal towpaths and delivery of stretches of the
Castleford to Wakefield greenway; Airedale (Leeds Liverpool); Calder
Hebble; Huddersfield Narrow Canal; Rochdale Canal Phases 1 and 2;
Significant surface upgrades to Castleford to Wakefield Greenway
Phases 2 and 3 and installation of a new bridge over the Hallam railway
line west of Castleford; Installation of a replacement shared-use bridge at
Scarborough Bridge, York.

o Phase 3 (to be funded through West Yorkshire plus Transport
Fund): On-highway improvements in Leeds at Claypit Lane, Dewsbury
Road, Elland Road; Huddersfield Town Centre; Surface upgrade to
Castleford to Wakefield Greenway; improvements to canal towpaths:
Leeds Liverpool Canal (Shipley); Huddersfield Narrow Canal (Phase 2);
and Brighouse to Bradley (Cooper Bridge).

The programme includes comprehensive pre and post-scheme monitoring of
pedestrian and cyclist levels for benefits realisation including user surveys,
significant consultation, engagement and behaviour change programme to
support new/improved infrastructure including work with local schools and



2.15

2.16

3.1

41

5.1

6.1

7.1

8.1

businesses. It also involves dedicated walking activity including work with
community groups, schools and businesses.

Whilst there has been some slippage the programme is delivering within
budget. Phase 1 schemes are all complete and operational, phase 2 schemes
are either on site or complete with further completions due in the next two to
three months. Cycling and walking levels show significant increases in places.

Phase 3 schemes are currently progressing through the assurance process.
The Rochdale Phase 2 project has been approved for delivery and milestones
for OBC/FBC submission have been produced for the other projects. The
Phase 3 projects are currently within budget.

Financial implications

There are no financial implications directly arising from this report.
Legal implications

There are no legal implications directly arising from this report.
Staffing implications

There are no staffing implications directly arising from this report.
External consultees

No external consultations have been undertaken.

Recommendations

It is recommended that the Investment Committee notes the progress made in
implementing the Combined Authority Capital Programme including the
Growth Deal and City Connect.

Background documents

None.

Appendices

Appendix 1 — Growth Deal Projects due to commence in 2019/20



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 5

Appendix 1

Completing | Completing | Starting in

SEP Priority Project Name Completed | 5 >615/19 | in 2019120 | 2019120

Access to Capital Grants Programme

Business Expansion Fund - Digital Inward Investment Fund
Business Expansion Fund - Strategic Inward Investment Fund
Business Growth Programme

Huddersfield Incubation and Innovation Programme

Institute for High Speed Rail and System Integration

Leeds University Innovation Centre

Total: 7 2 0 0 1

Priority 1 -
Growing
Business

>
£
>
£
>
=<

<|Z|<|Z|Z|Z|Z2

Bradford College N/A N/A
Calderdale College

Kirklees College - Dewsbury Learning Quarter
Kirklees College - Process Manufacturing Centre
Leeds City College - Printworks

Leeds City College - Quarry Hill

Leeds College of Building

Selby College

Shipley College - Mill

Shipley College - Salt Building

Wakefield College

Total: 11 8 1 1 0

Priority 2 -
Skilled
People and
Better
Jobs

<[<[<[<[z[z[<[<]z]<[<
z
<

Priority 3 - |Energy Accelerator
Clean Leeds District Heat Network
Energy [Resource Efficiency Fund
and Tackling Fuel Poverty
Economic |Total: 4 0 1 2 0

pzd 4 bl b4

Barnsley Town Centre N Y N/A
Bradford - One City Park N/A N/A N/A N
Bradford Odeon N N N
City Centre Heritage Properties - Bradford N/A N/A N/A N
Dewsbury Riverside N/A N/A N/A N
East Leeds Housing Growth - Brownfield Sites
East Leeds Housing Growth - Red Hall

Halifax - Beech Hill

Halifax Living programme (Phase 1)

Halifax Town Centre (Northgate House)
Kirklees Housing Sites

Leeds - Bath Road

New Bolton Woods

Wakefield City Centre - South East Gateway
Wakefield Civic Quarter

York Central

York Guildhall

Total :17 2 1 2 0

Priority 4a
Housing
and
Regenerati
on

\
>
<
<

>|>
>|>

Z|<[<|1Z|Z|Zz|Zz|z|Zz|Zz|Z2|Z2
zZ|Zz|Z|1Z|Z|Z|Z|Z2|1Z2|Z2(Z2|2
<|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|<|Z|Z|Z|Z2|Z2

A6110 Leeds Outer Ring Road

A62 - A644 (Wakefield Road) Link Road

A629 (Phase 1A) - Jubilee Road to Free School Lane

A629 (Phase 1B) - Elland Wood Bottom to Jubilee Road

A629 (Phase 2) - Eastern Gateway and Station Access Improvements

A629 (Phase 4) - Ainley Top

A629 (Phase 5) - Ainley Top into Huddersfield

A641 Bradford - Huddersfield Corridor

AB5 - Leeds Bradford International Airport Link Road

A650 Hard Ings Road (Phase 1) - Hard Ings Road Only

AB650 Tong Street

A653 Leeds to Dewsbury Corridor

Aire Valley - Leeds Integrated Transport Package (Phase 1) - Aire Valley Park and Ride
Bradford Forster Square Station Gateway

Bradford Interchange Station Gateway (Phase 1)

Bradford Interchange Station Gateway (Phase 2)

Bradford to Shipley Corridor

Calder Valley Line - Elland Station

Castleford Growth Corridor Scheme

Castleford Station Gateway

Corridor Improvement Programme - Bradford - A6177 Great Horton Road - Cross Lane (12)
Corridor Improvement Programme - Bradford - A6177 Great Horton Road - Horton Grange Road
Corridor Improvement Programme - Bradford - A6177 Thornton Road - Toller Lane (10)
Corridor Improvement Programme - Calderdale - A58 - A672 Corridor

Corridor Improvement Programme - Calderdale - A646 - A6033 Corridor
Corridor Improvement Programme - Kirklees - A62 Smart Corridor

Corridor Improvement Programme - Kirklees - Holmfirth Town Centre

Corridor Improvement Programme - Kirklees - Huddersfield Southern Gateways
Corridor Improvement Programme - Leeds - Dawsons Corner

Corridor Improvement Programme - Leeds - Dyneley Arms

Corridor Improvement Programme - Leeds - Fink Hill

Corridor Improvement Programme - Wakefield - A650 Newton Bar

Corridor Improvement Programme - Wakefield - Owl Lane

Corridor Improvement Programme (Phase 1)

Corridor Improvement Programme (Phase 2)

Glasshoughton Southern Link Road

Halifax Station Gateway

Harrogate Road - New Line

Huddersfield Station Gateway

Huddersfield Station Gateway (Phase 2)

Leeds City Centre Network and Interchange Package

Leeds ELOR and North Leeds Outer Ring Road

Leeds Station Gateway - Leeds Integrated Station Masterplan

Leeds Station Gateway - New Station Street

M62 Junction 24A

Rail Parking Package - Apperley Bridge

Rail Parking Package - Ben Rhydding

>
>

<[<[=<

Priority 4b
West
Yorkshire
+
Transport
Fund Total

ZlZ|1Z|Z|Z|1Z|Z|Z|1Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z2|Z|Z|Z2|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z(Z2|<|Z|Z2|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z |<|Z|Z2
ZZ|1Z|Z|Z|1Z|Z|Z|1Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z2|Z|Z|Z2|Z|Z|Z2|Z|Z(Z2|Z|Z(Z2|Z|Z|Z2|Z|Z|Z2|Z (2| 2|2
Z(Z|1Z|Z|Z|1Z|Z|Z|1Z|Z|Z|<|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z2|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|(Z2|Z|Z(Z2|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z (2| 2|2

11



Rail Parking Package - Fitzwilliam

Rail Parking Package - Guiseley

Rail Parking Package - Hebden Bridge

Rail Parking Package - Knottingley

Rail Parking Package - Mirfield A

>

>

Rail Parking Package - Mirfield B

Rail Parking Package - Morley

Rail Parking Package - Mytholmroyd

Rail Parking Package - Normanton

Rail Parking Package - Shipley

Rail Parking Package - South EImsall

>

>

Rail Parking Package (Phase 1)

Rail Parking Package (Phase 2)

South East Bradford Access Road

Thorpe Park Station

Transformational - LCR Inclusive Growth Corridor Plans

Transformational - NE Calderdale Transformational Programme Study

Transformational - North Kirklees Orbital Route Feasibility Study

Transformational - South Featherstone Link Road Feasibility Study

Transformational - York Northern Outer Ring Road Dualling Feasibility Study

Wakefield City Centre Package (Phase 1) - Kirkgate

Wakefield City Centre Package (Phase 2) - Ings Road

Wakefield Eastern Relief Road

>

>

York Northern Outer Ring Road

York Northern Outer Ring Road - Phase 1 (Wetherby Road)

>

>

York Northern Outer Ring Road - Phase 3

Z(Z|<|Z|Z|1Z|<|Z|<L|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|<|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|<|Z|Z|Z|Z|<

Z(Z|1Z|Z(Z|1Z|Z(Z|1Z|Z(Z|1Z|Z|Z|Z|Z(Z|1Z|Z|Z|Z|Z2|Z2|Z|Z2|Z2|Z|2

ZlZz|1Z|Z(Z|1Z|Z(Z|1Z|Z(Z|1Z|Z|Z|Z|Z(Z|Z|Z|Z|Z|Z2|Z2|<|Z|<|Z|Z2

Total: 80

16

Flood Alleviation - Leeds

>

£
>

Flood Alleviation - Mytholmroyd

=<

Priority 4c

Flood Alleviation - Skipton

£
>

Economic

Natural Flood Alleviation - Colne and Calder

Resilience

Natural Flood Alleviation - Upper Aire

Programm

Natural Flood Alleviation - Wyke Beck

Z(Z|1Z|<|Z|<

Z(Zz|1Z|<|Z|Z

e

Natural Flood Management Upper Aire (April 2019)

N/A

Leeds Flood Alleviation Scheme 2 (summer 2019)

N/A

gz
>3

zZ(Zz|<|Z|Z

<[=<

Total: 8

>

EZ - Bradford - Staithgate Lane

Priority 4d

EZ - Calderdale - Clifton Business Park

Enterprise

EZ - Kirklees - Lindley Moor East

Zone

EZ - Wakefield - Langthwaite Business Park Extension

Developme

EZ - Wakefield - South Kirkby Business Park

zZ(Zz|1Zz|Zz|Zz|Z|Z|Z2

zZ(z|1Zz|Zz|Zz|1Z|Z|Z2

Z(Zz|1Z|Zz|Z|<]|<]|<

nt

Total: 8

N/A

N/A

Priority 4e -

N/A

N/A

<[=<

Transport

Total: 2

Overall Total: 137

Key:
Currently in Delivery

Completed or to start beyond 2019/20

12




Agenda Iltem 6

West
Yorkshire

Combined

Authority

Reportto:  West Yorkshire and York Investment Committee

Date: 8 May 2019
Subject: Capital Spending and Project Approvals
Director: Melanie Corcoran, Director of Delivery

Author(s):  Craig Taylor / Cath Pinn

1.1

1.2

1.3

Purpose of this report

To put forward proposals for the progression of, and funding for, a number of
West Yorkshire Combined Authority supported projects, including West
Yorkshire plus Transport Fund (Transport Fund) and Growth Fund, for
consideration by the Investment Committee at stages 1, 2 and 3 of the
Combined Authority’s assurance process.

The Investment Committee has delegated decision making authority, this was
approved by the Combined Authority on 13 December 2018. Where
Investment Committee is asked to make an approval decision this will be
highlighted in the summary table and made clear in the recommendations.

This report presents proposals for the progression of two schemes through the
Combined Authority’s assurance process in line with the Leeds City Region
Assurance Framework. These schemes have a total combined funding value
of £10.034 million when fully approved, of which the total value of £10.034
million will be funded by the Combined Authority. A total expenditure
recommendation to the value of £1.059 million is sought as part of this report
for the development of these schemes. Further details on the schemes are
summarised below and can be found as part of this report.

Scheme Scheme description

Transport Hubs and The Transport Hubs Improvements and Public Transport
Connecting Access schemes are a part of the Transport Hubs and
Communities Connecting Communities work stream of the Leeds Public

Leeds transport Investment Programme (LPTIP)

The schemes will upgrade or create new facilities to improve
the waiting environment and travel information offer, as well as
enhancing connections within and between other public
transport hubs and communities by improving walking and

cycling links.

13



The scheme is funded through the Leeds Public Transport
Investment Programme (LPTIP), which seeks to address
connectivity challenges the City Region faces, constraining
economic growth.

Impact

The scheme currently demonstrates a benefit cost ratio of
2.33:1 judged as high value for money.

The scheme’s wider social benefits include health benefits by
encouraging active mode travel and improved air quality
through anticipated reduction in traffic congestion, and a better
quality of life with improved access to public transport and
subsequently to communities / jobs within the City Region, and
more attractive waiting environments.

Decision sought

Approval to proceed through decision point 3 and work
commences on activity 5 (full business case with finalised
costs).

Total value - £8.905 million
Total value of Combined Authority funding - £8.905 million

Funding recommendation sought - £0 (approval of £850,000
development costs secured at decision point 2)

A decision by the Investment Committee using the
delegated authority from the Combined Authority is sought
as part of this report.

Scheme

Garforth Rail Station
Car Park Extension

Leeds

Scheme description

The Garforth car park extension scheme is part of the rail park
& ride programme - a programme of car park extensions on rail
station land owned by Network Rail or district partners, to meet
increased user parking demand and enhance connectivity to,
from and within West Yorkshire.

The scheme will be funded through the West Yorkshire plus
Transport Fund.

Impact

Scheme delivery will comprise of an extension and
reconfiguration of the car park, to deliver in total an additional
85 spaces (increasing total capacity from 252 to 337), a
widened access to reduce vehicle congestion, and an
enhanced pedestrian access to the platform.

The increase in capacity includes delivery of an additional 11
blue badge spaces.

Decision sought

Approval to proceed through decision point 5 (full business
case with finalised costs) and for work to commence on activity
6 (delivery).

Total value - £1.129 million

Total value of Combined Authority funding - £1.129 million

14




1.4

Funding recommendation sought - £1.059 million (£0.07 million
previously approved)

A decision by the Investment Committee using the delegated
authority from the Combined Authority is sought as part of
this report.

This report also presents recommendations for the following change request
which relates to two Combined Authority funded schemes and has been
assessed in line with the Combined Authority’s assurance process. These
schemes have a combined funding value of £13.45 million, all of which will be
funded by the Combined Authority (in addition, both schemes will leverage in
private sector contributions). Further details of the change request are
summarised below and can be found as part of this report.

Scheme

Digital Inward
Investment Fund and
Strategic Inward
Investment Fund
Change Request

Leeds City Region

Scheme description

Strategic Inward Investment Fund — Grant fund programme
which provides grants to organisations to support inward
investment projects.

Digital Inward Investment Fund — Grant fund programme which
provides grants to small & medium enterprises in the digital and
creative sector to support either their inward investment or
growth projects within the Leeds City Region

Impact

Creation of over 1,400 jobs in the Leeds city Region and
delivering a GVA uplift of over £700 million through supporting
investment in the Leeds City Region.

Contributing to inclusive growth by ensuring supported projects
widen the access across the region to employment
opportunities and supporting the skills agenda.

Decision sought

Activity 6 change request to a) reallocate funding from the
Strategic Inward Investment Fund to the Digital Inward
Investment Fund and b) expand the eligibility criteria for the
Digital Inward Investment Fund to enable grant support to be
provided to eligible businesses already located in the Leeds
City Region

Total value — Strategic Inward Investment Fund - £10.95
million, Digital Inward Investment Fund - £2.5 million

Total value of Combined Authority funding - Strategic Inward
Investment Fund - £10.95 million, Digital Inward Investment
Fund - £2.5 million

Funding recommendation sought — To reduce the Strategic
Inward Investment Fund expenditure approval from £12.45
million to £10.95 million and increase the Digital Inward
Investment Fund from £1 million to £2.5 million.

A decision by the Investment Committee using the delegated
authority from the Combined Authority is sought as part of
this report.

15




1.5

2.2

Since the Investment Committee’s meeting on 13 March 2019, the following
decision points have been assessed in line with the Combined Authority’s
assurance process and approved through the agreed delegation to the
Combined Authority’s Managing Director. Under the delegation a total
expenditure of £1.7 million has been approved relating the following schemes.

o Elland Station and Access Package, Calderdale
J Raising Aspirations, Leeds City Region
Information

The background information on the Combined Authority’s assurance
framework through which each of the schemes outlined in this report are being
approved is provided in Appendix 1. In addition, this appendix also provides a
description of the approach for the future assurance approval pathway and the
assurance tolerances for each scheme.

Programmes and projects for consideration

Projects in Stage 2: Development

Stage 2: Development

Activity 3 Activity 4 Activity 5

FBC with
Finalised
() T

Projects at this development stage should demonstrate that they have tested
the feasibility of a solution through their business case. This business case
should then be developed in order to confirm and detail the preferred solution
including finalising its cost.

Project Title Transport Hubs and Connecting Communities

Stage 2 (Development)

DETEEEHE I 3 (Outline business case)

Is this a key decision? Yes I No

Is the decision eligible for call-in by Scrutiny? Yes 1 No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information or

) O Yes No
appendices?

If relevant, state paragraph number of Schedule 12A, Local
Government Act 1972, Part 1:

16



2.3

24

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

29

Background

The Transport Hubs Improvements and Public Transport Access schemes are
a part of the Transport Hubs and Connecting Communities work streams,
which is part of the Bus Delivery Package included in the Leeds Public
Transport Investment Programme (LPTIP).

The Leeds Public Transport Investment Programme (LPTIP) is a programme
of investment seeking to address connectivity challenges the City Region
faces, constraining economic growth.

The LPTIP funding programme comprises of 8 delivery packages with the
Transport Hubs and Connecting Communities work streams profiled for
delivery under the Bus Delivery package, which comprises of six work
streams:
o Low Emission Bus Top Up
. Transport Hubs
o Real Time Information
o Leeds Bus Station
. Connecting Communities:
o Public transport access improvements
o Digital Hub
o Demand Responsive Transport Trial
o Network Visualisation
Following extensive consultation and a robust sifting process, the outline

business case presented at decision point 3 brings forward a total of nine
schemes:

. Transport Hubs Improvement at: Bramley, Middleton, White Rose,
Compton Road Interchange

o Public Transport Access at: Robin Hood, Lincoln Green, Little London,
East End Park, Pudsey

A map of the locations can be found within the scheme’s business case,
included in Appendix 2.

Key activities for delivery across the transport hub schemes include improving
pedestrian access to the hubs and bus services through footway widening and
kerb works, improving pedestrian connectivity and wayfinding between bus
stops and local facilities, enhancing the waiting environment and facilities
including real time information and totem signage, and reconfiguration of bus
shelters.

Key activities for delivery across the public transport access schemes include
conversion of footways to shared foot/cycle ways, kerb works (widening /

17



2.10

2.1

212

213

214

2.15

dropping) to facilitate cycles, enhanced cycleway signage, upgrades to
existing crossing facilities, reconfiguration of laybys, and road resurfacing
works.

Through scheme delivery, it is anticipated to encourage mode shift from car to
bus and rail due to better facilitated, accessible, connected, and attractive
hubs, and encourage active mode travel through enhanced walking and
cycling provision. The wider impact of these outputs will support reducing road
traffic congestion.

The aforementioned outputs support the delivery of the scheme objectives of
increasing public transport patronage, provision of more attractive and safe
pedestrian and cycling facilities, and improving air quality and environmental
impacts in the district.

These objectives align to that of the wider LPTIP programme which includes
investment in city centre gateway including the Headrow, Corn Exchange and
Infirmary Street, increasing bus priority on the A61 north and the A61 south,
A647, A660 and the A58; and development of two new park and rides at
Stourton and Alwoodley.

The schemes primarily support Priority Area 4 ‘Infrastructure for Growth’ of the
Leeds City Region Strategic Economic Plan, with synergy and consequential
benefits that will support Priority Area 1 ‘Growing Businesses’ and Priority
Area 3 ‘Clean Energy and Environmental Resilience’.

A summary of the scheme’s business case is included in Appendix 2.
Outputs, benefits and inclusive growth implications
The following principles derived from the objectives were also agreed:

Transport Hubs

o Passenger Journeys — Number of passengers boarding/ alighting/
interchanging in one location.

o Interchange with Other Modes — Existing or opportunity to improve
interchange with other modes such as rail stations, cycle parking, walking
and taxis.

o Creating a Sense of Place — Provide integration and improvement to the
local area and enhance connectivity to local facilities and businesses.

o Bus Interchange Facilities — Standard of existing facility and
opportunity to enhance provision to include aspects such as waiting
facilities, wayfinding, pedestrian and personal safety.

o Number of Destinations Served — Location of bus interchange with
multiple destinations services.

. Facilitate Modal Shift — Utilising park and ride where appropriate to
encourage shift from the private car.

18



Public Transport Access Schemes

Bus Network Integration - Effective integration of the bus services to
both the commercial network and supported bus services. The service
provides connectivity to locations which currently have limited services.

Promotes Inclusive Growth - To supplement the existing bus network
providing connectivity for those in deprived areas, locations of high
unemployment, groups with mobility challenges and promotes travel for
under 19 year olds.

Scheme Sustainability — Scheme does not require additional revenue
funding to supplement initial capital funding.

Facilitate Modal Shift - To connect communities with high commuter
flows by private car to rail stations where they are currently unable to
access the rail network by public transport.

To improve air quality and environmental impacts in the district, with an
anticipated reduction in levels of pollutant within 5 years of scheme
completion.

The combined benefit cost ratio (BCR) at this stage of scheme
development is 2.33:1 which reflects a high value for money scheme. The
BCR will be refined at full business case (decision point 4) following
completion of detailed design.

The scheme’s wider social benefits include health benefits by encouraging
active mode travel and improved air quality through anticipated reduction
in traffic congestion following increase in public transport patronage.
Additionally a better quality of life with improved access to public transport
and subsequently to communities and jobs within the City Region, as well
as more attractive waiting environments and improvements to user
information with enhanced real time information and totem signage.

Risks

2.16 The main headline risks across Transport Hubs and Connecting Communities
schemes:

The detailed design stage bringing to light several risks impacting scheme
costs and deliverability such as greater earthwork costs and contaminated
land than anticipated, errors in topographical surveys, and stage 2 and 3
safety audit identifying changes to scheme design. The Combined
Authority has provided mitigation measures such as ensuring use of
qualified specialist surveyors and maintaining close site working
arrangements, that sufficient site investigations are carried out to ensure
accurate classification, and ensuring adequate safety assessments are
carried out throughout the scheme design process.

Costs

2.17 The meeting of the Combined Authority on 29 June 2017 approved that the
Leeds Public Transport Investment Programme (LPTIP) should proceed

19



2.18

2.19

2.20

2.21

through decision point 2 with an indicative total Combined Authority funding
approval of £183.266 million, and that £15.310 million be approved to fund
project development costs. It also agreed that the schemes would now
progress on an individual project or package basis to outline business case.

Within the aforementioned programme approval, the Bus Delivery package
was allocated £27.2 million. Within this allocation, Transport Hubs was allotted
£8 million towards scheme costs, and Connecting Communities £5 million,
with approval of £800,000 and £50,000 respectively towards project
development costs.

Nine schemes have now come forward as a package at outline business case
at a total cost of £8.905 million. These schemes cut across both the Transport
Hubs and Connecting Communities work streams.

The Combined Authority has indicated £8 million of costs is to be funded from
the Transport Hubs pot and £905,000 from the Connecting Communities pot
and that further project development costs to progress to full business case
with finalised costs (decision point 5) are not required at this stage beyond the
previous approval.

Timescales
Key milestone dates:

o Statutory regulations (planning, land acquisition, traffic regulation order) -

November 2019

o Full business case with finalised costs decision point 5 (package 1) -
December 2019

o Full business case with finalised costs decision point 5 (package 2) -
April 2020

J Start of construction - July 2020

o End of construction decision point 6 - July 2021

Assurance pathway and approval route

Assurance pathway Approval route

Decision point 3 (outline business case) Recommendation: Investment Committee

Decision: Combined Authority

Decision point 4 (full business case) Recommendation: Combined Authority's
Programme Appraisal Team

Decision: Combined Authority's Managing

Director
Decision point 5 (full business case with Recommendation: Combined Authority's
finalised costs) Programme Appraisal Team

20



2.22

2.23

2.24

2.25

2.26

Decision: Combined Authority's Managing
Director

Assurance Tolerances

Assurance tolerances

Combined Authority costs should remain within 10% of the costs set out in this report.

That programme timescales should remain within 3 months of the timescales set
out in this report

Project responsibilities

Senior Responsible Officer Gary Bartlett, Leeds City Council

Dave Pearson, Combined Authority

Project Manager Helen Ellerton, Combined Authority

Combined Authority case officer Asif Abed

Appraisal summary

The business case demonstrates a good strategic fit, with close synergy to
local and regional transport strategies to encourage mode shift from car to
public transport, and to encourage active mode of travel.

The Combined Authority has highlighted the possible options to procurement,
with supporting narrative provided as to the considerations being given to
each, giving confidence the best route will be taken forward and be
demonstrated at full business case with finalised costs (decision point 5).

The financial case adequately details the forecast costs of the individual
schemes, with board approval minutes supporting the package approach of
bringing forward Transport Hubs and Connecting Communities schemes from
the £27.2 million Bus Delivery package of the Leeds Public Transport
Investment Programme (LPTIP) in a single outline business case at decision
point 3.

The economic case is well presented and currently reflects a combined benefit
cost ratio (BCR) of 2.33:1, judged as high value for money. This will be refined
at full business case with finalised costs.

The outline business case presented at decision point 3 on the whole provides
sufficient level of detail expected at this stage to satisfy appraisal of the five
cases, with recommendation to progress to full business case with finalised
costs (decision point 5).

21



Recommendations

2.27 That Investment Committee recommends to the Combined Authority that:

2.28

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

Project Title Garforth Rail Station Car Park Extension

Stage 2 (Development)

TR 5 (Full business case with finalised costs)

The Transport Hubs Improvement and Public Transport Access scheme
proceeds through decision point 3 and work commences on activity 5 (full
business case with finalised costs).

An indicative approval to the total project value of £8.905 million is given
from the Leeds Public Transport Investment Programme with full approval
to spend being granted once the scheme has progressed through the
assurance process to decision point 5 (full business case with finalised
costs).

Future approvals are made in accordance with the approval pathway and
approval route outlined in this report including at decision points 4 and 5
through a delegation to the Combined Authority’s Managing Director
following a recommendation by the Combined Authority’s Programme
Appraisal Team. This will be subject to the scheme remaining within the
tolerances outlined in this report.

Is this a key decision? Yes LI No

Is the decision eligible for call-in by Scrutiny? Yes I No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information or
appendices?

[ Yes X No

If relevant, state paragraph number of Schedule 12A, Local
Government Act 1972, Part 1:

Background

This scheme will be funded from the West Yorkshire plus Transport Fund. This
is a £1 billion fund, covering West Yorkshire and York. The objectives of the
West Yorkshire plus Transport Fund are to enable key employment and
housing development areas and will help to create around 20,000 new jobs
over the next 10 years. These strategic transport projects will be delivered to

22



2.29

2.30

2.31

2.32

2.33

2.34

2.35

facilitate the growth priorities identified in the Leeds City Region Economic
plan.

The Combined Authority approved the mandate in 2014 for a programme of car
park extensions on rail station land owned by Network Rail or district partners,
awarding the programme £30.5 million from the West Yorkshire plus Transport
Fund. Following feasibility works, and a number of sifting exercises, the final
programme comprises of 14 schemes, three of which have already been
successfully completed at South Elmsall, Fitzwiliam and Mirfield A, with
Mytholmroyd and Hebden Bridge currently in delivery.

Demand for rail travel has increased significantly in West Yorkshire and is
expected to continue, as set out by the Leeds City Region Transport Plan 2040,
which forecasts a growth of 75% in rail trips by 2027.

Rail station car parks however are at capacity, constraining rail accessibility
especially between commuter towns and main urban centres, and if not
resolved, will discourage train travel for existing users and potential new users.
This is evident at Garforth with the car park full by 8am on most term time
weekdays, and in the event has caused complaints from rail users at the lack of
parking, and from local residents due to rail users resorting to parking on street
in the surrounding area.

Scheme delivery at Garforth station will see a reconfiguration and extension of
the car park to primarily create an additional 85 parking spaces, increasing
capacity from 252 to 337 spaces. As part of scheme design, the proposal will
also include a widened access for vehicles, making entry and exit easier,
subsequently reducing congestion. Additionally, pedestrian access to the
station will be improved, provision of CCTV, low energy lighting, and enhanced
draining infrastructure will be delivered, and electrical ducting to future proof
possibility of providing two electric vehicle charging bays.

Through scheme delivery, it is anticipated to deliver improvements for existing
rail users due to improved access in to the car park, and a better guarantee of
parking availability. As a result, journey times should improve, with reduced
congestion driving in to the car park, reduced time to find a parking space, and
reduced walking time to the platform, especially for those who otherwise park
on street. Increase in parking capacity should therefore also contribute to
removal of on street parking by rail users, improving the environment for local
residents.

Scheme delivery should also encourage new users to make onward journeys
by rail. This switch to a more sustainable mode of travel will support reducing
road traffic and subsequently carbon emissions, supporting delivery of the
transport strategy and City Region Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) objectives.

The scheme primarily supports priority 4 ‘infrastructure for growth’ of the Leeds
City Region Strategic Economic Plan, with increase in parking capacity
encouraging users to switch to a more sustainable mode of travel and providing
better connectivity and access to employment and housing.

23



2.36

2.37

2.38

A summary of the scheme’s business case and location map is included in
Appendix 3.

Outputs, benefits and inclusive growth implications

Project outputs and benefits are:

An additional 85 spaces increasing total capacity for rail users from 252
to 337 parking spaces, including an additional 11 blue badge spaces,
giving a better guarantee of parking availability, and in the process
contributing to removal of on street parking.

Reduction in walk time to the station platform, predominantly to users
who otherwise have been parking on street.

Reduction in overall journey time with delivery of a widened entry point to
ease congestion and improved pedestrian access to the station platform.

Contribution to increase in rail patronage with increase in parking
capacity to encourage new users.

Contribution to improving air quality within the local and surrounding
areas with more users switching onward journey travel to train.

Contribution to increase in employment accessibility with additional users
to have opportunity to commute from Garforth.

The scheme Benefit Cost Ratio (BCR) is estimated at 2.9, judged as high
value for money.

The contractor has confirmed that 45% of the contract value will be
sourced locally, rising to 61% within a 55 mile radius. This will support
good growth principle of investment in to local labour. Scheme delivery
will also support a better quality of life, with rail users having a better
guarantee of parking availability and avoiding the need of on street
parking, which will appease local residents. The scheme will also
encourage new users to switch to a sustainable mode of travel for
onward journeys, providing better access to employment, and in the
event reducing vehicle traffic and therefore carbon emissions on the
road.

Risks

Key risks to the project are:

Access widening: The design has been agreed in principle but is still
subject to approval of a section 278 by Leeds City Council, expected in
May 2019.

Decant strategy: During construction the car park will only be semi-
closed, with anticipation to offer use of 100 out of the existing 252
spaces. The risk is a number of users decanting on to local streets,
causing further conflict with local residents. A communications package
for rail users, recommending alternative travel arrangements whilst still

24



2.39

2.40

2.41

242

2.43

2.44

2.45

2.46

promoting sustainable travel is to be drafted with Arriva Rail North and
local ward members.

Costs

At decision point 2 (case paper) on 5 April 2018, the Combined Authority
indicatively approved £825,000 total scheme cost, with approval of £45,000
development costs to progress the scheme to decision point 5 (full business
case with finalised costs).

The scheme has also secured Managing Director approval of £25,000 to allow
the Combined Authority to enter in to a Basic Asset Protection Agreement
(BAPA) with Network Rail. The BAPA confirms Network Rail’s approval of
scheme design and allows works to be undertaken during the quieter summer
holiday period, which in turn brings forward scheme completion (decision point
6) from December 2019 to November 2019.

The scheme has now come forward at decision point 5 seeking further
approval, with total scheme costs of £1,129,278 reflecting a cost increase of
£304,278. The increase in project costs is due to an increase in specification
for drainage infrastructure at detailed design required by Network Rail and
insufficient allowance for associated project costs and contingency.

The rail park and ride programme has secured £30.5 million from the West
Yorkshire plus Transport Fund and the Combined Authority has confirmed that
the scheme is affordable within the overall programme. The Combined
Authority has agreed to undertake a programme affordability exercise for
consideration by the programme board and the Programme Appraisal Team
(PAT).

Given the above, the scheme to date has secured approval of £70,000. The
Combined Authority now seeks approval of a further £1.059 million at decision
point 5.

The Combined Authority is required to enter in to a Section 56 Rail Funding
Agreement with Arriva Rail North for spend up to £1.029 million, to be funded
from the West Yorkshire plus Transport Fund.

The Combined Authority is required to enter in to a Section 278 Funding
Agreement with Leeds City Council for spend up to £30,000, to be funded from
the West Yorkshire plus Transport Fund.

Timescales
Key milestone dates:

o Enter in to respective agreements - late May / early June 2019
o Section 278 access widening works - Late May 2019

o Main contractor works commence - July 2019

25



o Contractor works complete and handover (decision point 6) - November
2019

Assurance pathway and approval route

Assurance pathway Approval route
Decision point 5 (full business case with Recommendation: Combined Authority's
finalised costs) Programme Appraisal Team

Decision: Investment Committee

Decision point 6 (delivery) Recommendation: Combined Authority’s
Programme Appraisal Team

Decision: Combined Authority’s Director of
Delivery

Decision point 7 (review and close) Recommendation: Combined Authority’s
Programme Appraisal Team

Decision: Combined Authority’s Director of
Delivery

Assurance Tolerances

Assurance tolerances

Scheme costs to remain within 5% of costs set out in this report.

Delivery programme to remain within 3 months of that set out in this report.

Project responsibilities

Senior Responsible Officer Melanie Corcoran, Combined Authority
Project Manager Sara Brook, Combined Authority
Combined Authority case officer Asif Abed

Appraisal summary

2.47 The business case at decision point 5 reinforces the strategic rationale behind
scheme delivery, highlighting the need for intervention based on issues
identified as to the current configuration of the car park, as well as making a
strong case for market demand for commuting by rail should the parking
capacity be increased. The scheme therefore can be seen as good fit in
supporting objectives of the transport strategy and the Leeds City Region
Strategic Economic Plan.

2.48 Furthermore, the business case presents in good detail the considerations

taken in developing the procurement strategy and demonstrates the tender
process with sound reasoning to justify appointment of the main contractor.

26



2.49

2.50

2.51

2.52

The financial case does however reflect a fairly significant cost increase to that
forecast at decision point 2 and costs can be accommodated within the rail
park and ride programme, which has secured £30.5 million from the West
Yorkshire plus Transport Fund.

The economic case does present a good argument for this scheme,
demonstrating a benefit cost ratio of 2.9 (high value for money), with adequate
level of information provided to justify the modelling and appraisal
methodologies, and assumptions used in the value for money assessment.

On the whole it can be recommended that the scheme proceeds to Activity 6
(delivery), a wider review is required at programme level to ensure the
remainder of the programme is affordable with confirmation of anticipated
outputs and associated costs, which will be considered at future meetings.

Recommendations
The Investment Committee approves that:

(i) The Garforth rail car park extension scheme proceeds though decision
point 5 (full business case with finalised costs) and work commences on
activity 6 (delivery).

@iy  Approval to the total project value of £1,129,278 is given from the West
Yorkshire plus Transport Fund, with approval of £1,059,278 through this
report.

(i) The Combined Authority enters into a Section 56 Rail Funding
Agreement with Arriva Rail North for spend of up to £1,029,278 from the
West Yorkshire plus Transport Fund.

(iv) The Combined Authority enters into a Section 278 Funding Agreement
with Leeds City Council for spend up to £30,000 from the West Yorkshire
plus Transport Fund.

(v) Future approvals are made in accordance with the approval pathway and
approval route outlined in this report including at decision point 6 and 7
through a delegation to the Combined Authority’s Director of Delivery
following a recommendation by the Combined Authority’s Programme
Appraisal Team. This will be subject to the scheme remaining within the
tolerances outlined in this report.

27



Projects in Stage 3: Delivery and Evaluation

2.53

2.54

2.55

2.56

Stage 3: Delivery & Evaluation

Activity 6 Activity 7
Close &
° Review °

/

Once in Delivery and Evaluation the scheme is delivered and Combined
Authority funding is drawn down. When delivery is completed a review is
carried out to ensure that the scheme has met all its requirements and outputs
in accordance with its Funding Agreement. Finally information about a
scheme’s performance following its completion is collected, in order to
evaluate the success of the scheme.

Strategic Inward Investment Fund & Digital Inward
Investment Fund Change Request

Project Title

Stage 3 (Delivery and Evaluation)

Decision Point 6 (Delivery)

Is this a key decision? U Yes No
Is the decision eligible for call-in by Scrutiny? X Yes I No
Does th_e report contain confidential or exempt information or 0 Yes No
appendices?

If relevant, state paragraph number of Schedule 12A, Local
Government Act 1972, Part 1:

Background

There are two schemes which are the subject of this change request; the
Strategic Inward Investment Fund, and the Digital Inward Investment Fund.

Both schemes are funded through the Local Growth Fund. The purpose of this
funding is to attract the next generation of jobs and deliver a step change to
the growth of the City Region. The Growth Deal enables implementation of the
priorities set out in the Strategic Economic Plan including the development of
housing and commercial sites, expansion of a skilled workforce, support to
growing businesses, promotion of resource efficiency and investment in
integrated transport (through the West Yorkshire plus Transport Fund).

The Strategic Inward Investment fund received decision point 5 approval in
September 2018 and is now in delivery (activity 6). The purpose of the fund is

28



2.57

2.58

2.59

to provide grants of between €200,000" and £1 million to large organisations in
order to attract strategic investment in the City Region’s priority sectors
(Advanced Manufacturing, Financial and Professional Services, Digital and
Technology, and Health and Life Sciences) and in wider industries. The grants
are intended to address funding gaps that have been evidenced by the
applicant, which act as a barrier to their investment. The maximum
intervention rate for Combined Authority investment is 10% of project costs
and the grant can contribute towards any capital costs associated with the
investment project. The fund is anticipated to deliver 1,245 net new jobs to the
city region and £650 million in GVA uplift. The Strategic Inward Investment
Fund received an expenditure approval of £12.45 million at decision point 5.

The Digital Inward Investment fund received decision point 5 approval in
September 2018 and is now in delivery (activity 6). The purpose of the fund
was to provide grants of between £10,000 to £50,000 to digital & creative
companies to support their inward investment into the city region, or to assist
projects which were considered mobile (i.e. could locate out of the city region)
to occur in the city region. The grants are intended to address funding gaps
that have been evidenced by the applicant. The required intervention rate for
Combined Authority investment is 50:50 and the grant can contribute towards
any capital costs associated with the investment project. The fund is
anticipated to deliver 170 net new jobs to the city region and £56 million in
GVA uplift.

Since both funds have been in delivery, the interest and uptake of the
Strategic Inward Investment Fund and Digital Inward Investment Fund have
led to the reassessment of the structure of these grant schemes, and has
informed this change request. For Strategic Inward Investment Fund, there
have been a limited number of grant awards due in part to the state aid
regulations that must be applied to the fund. Despite this, the grants that have
been committed or awarded have delivered very good value for money and
strong strategic fit with the Strategic Economic Plan leading to the job target
for the programme of 1,245 being met already.

Conversely the interest in the Digital Inward Investment Fund has exceeded
that originally forecast and 20% of this fund has been committed to date. A key
contributory factor is the announcement of the Channel 4 relocation to the
Leeds, which has encouraged digital and creative businesses to consider
relocating outside of London in order to capitalise on the anticipated sector
growth in the Leeds City Region. Digital Inward Investment Fund provides the
Combined Authority with the potential to support companies to relocate to the
city region and ensure that there is strong supply chain in place to support the
Channel 4 investment. Over the last 15 months, the Combined Authority have
consistently received enquiries from digital and creative businesses that are
currently located within the Leeds City Region looking for support to grow their

" These parameters refer to two common routes through which state aid is given to businesses: de
minimis (which allows for €200,000 of support over a three year rolling period) and the Regional
Investment Aid provision of the General Block Exemption Regulations, which allows support of up to
10% of eligible capital expenditure. The scheme has a guideline limit on contributions to individual
projects at £1,000,000.

29



2.60

2.61

business. They are not currently eligible for support from Digital Inward
Investment Fund and as such cannot receive any sector specific support from
the Combined Authority. It has been identified that providing support to these
businesses will deliver similar levels of jobs and GVA uplift to that delivered
through applications that are already eligible.

Description of the Change Request

The factors above have led to the following change request being proposed:

That £1.5 million of funding is transferred from the Strategic Inward
Investment Fund to the Digital Inward Investment Fund, to enable the
Digital Inward Investment Fund to meet the level of demand for grants
that has been forecast.

The implementation of this change request will lead to the Digital Inward
Investment Fund having a £2.5 million expenditure approval and the
Strategic Inward Investment Fund a £10.95 million expenditure approval.
Based on current levels of demand it is assessed that these revised
funding levels will meet the requirements of the individual grant funds.
There will be no net impact on the number of jobs and GVA uplift will
increase slightly due to the value of the jobs that are likely to be created
generally being of above average value.

That the eligibility criteria for the Digital Inward Investment Fund is
expanded to enable businesses that are located within the Leeds City
Region to be supported by grants of between £10,000 and £50,000. It is
intended that the Digital Inward Investment Fund will be managed as a
single fund but marketed under two separate brands to cater for the
different requirements of the applicants.

The expansion will be affordable by increasing the value of the funding
available. There is not considered to be any net change to the number or
value of jobs created as a result of this element of the change request. It
is considered that provision of this grant funding will assist in addressing
the shortage of suitable digital and creative office space available outside
of central Leeds, by supporting businesses to develop accommodation
that meets their growth requirements in or near their current location.

Outputs, benefits and inclusive growth implications

The implementation of this change request will result in the following outputs,
benefits and growth:

Facilitating the growth in the Leeds City Region’s digital & creative sector
Supporting large companies to invest in the Leeds City Region

The creation of over 1,400 jobs (which matches the total number of jobs
prior to this change request:

o A minimum 1,245 net additional jobs from the Strategic Inward
Investment Fund

o 157 jobs from the Digital Inward Investment Fund

30



GVA uplift of over £700 million
o  £650 million from the Strategic Inward Investment Fund
o  £56 million from the Digital Inward Investment Fund

Leverage in £74.6 million of private sector development (which is £10.5
million below the combined GVA uplift forecast prior to this change
request). This is because the Digital Inward Investment Fund requires
less private sector intervention than Strategic Inward Investment Fund
grants.

Ensuring through the application of grant conditions that recipient
businesses contribute to the city region’s inclusive growth priorities, in
particular addressing widening access to employment opportunities and
the skills agenda.

Risks

2.62 The key risks are:

That insufficient take up of the funds limits the impact of the schemes,
relative to what could be achieved with a full commitment of funding. This
will be managed through the recruitment of a dedicated role to develop
relationships with potential applicant businesses. In addition, a lead
generation exercise is underway to identify potential applicants, and this
work will be renewed if successful. A dedicated marketing campaign will
be undertaken to raise awareness of the scheme locally, and existing
and well established networks including the Growth Managers will be
utilised.

That the quality or diversity of projects limits the impact of the schemes.
Geographic spread will be addressed through ongoing engagement of
local authority partners, local business networks and Growth Managers.
The selection criteria for the scheme will allow for the breadth of the
sector to apply. Quality will be assessed through appraisals and through
panel discussion. The impact of grants will be monitored on an ongoing
basis to ensure that quality is achieved in line with the conditions of the
grant award.

That there is insufficient physical space to accommodate the inward
investment and growth projects that are able to be unlocked through this
funding, and that this acts as a restriction on the overall scheme. The
grant should address this directly, and will support businesses to
undertake capital projects to expand or create new space fit for their
growth. The Combined Authority will work with local authority partners,
through the business support and trade and investment teams, to provide
an understanding of business demand to inform the development of new
physical space. Where appropriate the trade and investment team will
also work with developers and investors to unlock new property
developments suitable for the sector.

31



2.63

2.64

2.65

2.66

Costs

That the expenditure approval relating to the Strategic Inward Investment
Fund changes from £12.45 million to £10.95 million.

That the expenditure approval relating to the Digital Inward Investment Fund
changes from £1 million to £2.5 million.

Timescales
The timescales for both grant funds remains unchanged.

o Strategic Inward Investment Fund and Digital Inward Investment Fund
Grant Closes — March 2021 (decision point 6).

o Delivery of all outputs required through the Grant Agreements i.e. jobs
created — outputs forecast by March 2023 (decision point 7).

Assurance pathway and approval route

Assurance pathway Approval route

Decision point 6 (delivery) Recommendation: Combined Authority’s
Programme Appraisal Team

Decision: Director of Delivery

Assurance Tolerances

Assurance tolerances

That the Combined Authority funding remains within the expenditure approval set out in this
report.

That the Strategic Inward Investment Fund funding remains the expenditure approval set
out in this report.

That timescales should remain within those set out in this report.

That the cost per job for both Strategic Inward Investment Fund and Digital Inward
Investment Fund should not exceed £10,000.

Project responsibilities

Senior Responsible Officer Henry Rigg, Combined Authority
Project Manager Sam Lewis, Combined Authority
Combined Authority case officer Cath Pinn

Appraisal summary

This change request enables the Combined Authority to respond strongly to
growth opportunities in the Leeds City Region’s digital and creative sector (a

32



2.67

priority sector within the Strategic Economic Plan) and meet the emerging
levels of demand for this type of grant support from businesses located both
within and outside of the Leeds City Region. The appraisal has shown that
transferring the funding from the Strategic Inward Investment Fund to the
Digital Inward Investment Fund will not impact on the level of jobs created, and
may slightly improve the GVA impacts due to the nature of jobs that are
created in this digital and creative sector. The Digital Inward Investment Fund
requires a lower level of private sector match funding, than the Strategic
Inward Investment Fund (in line with state aid regulations) and as a result the
£1.5 million of funding transferred to the Digital Inward Investment Fund will
leverage in less private sector match funding than if it remained in the
Strategic Inward Investment Fund, however as the Combined Authority is
performing strongly against its growth deal match funding target, this change
request will not affect the ability to meet this target. Changing the eligibility of
the Digital Inward Investment Fund will enable businesses based in the Leeds
City Region to also grow in response to new sector opportunities, to better
distribute the benefits of these opportunities in the region.

Recommendations

That Investment Committee approves the following elements of this change
request:

(i) Toreallocate £1.5 million of funding from the Strategic Inward Investment
Fund to the Digital Inward Investment Fund, resulting in the revised
expenditure approvals of £10.95 million for Strategic Inward Investment
Fund and £2.5 million for Digital Inward Investment Fund.

(i) To amend the scope of the Digital Inward Investment Fund, by expanding
the eligibility criteria to enable businesses already located in the Leeds
City Region to receive grant support from the programme.

(iii) Future approvals are made in accordance with the approval pathway and
approval route outlined in this report following a recommendation by the
Combined Authority’s Programme Appraisal Team. This will be subject to
the scheme remaining within the tolerances outlined in this report.

33



2.68

2.69

2.70

2.71

2.72

2.73

Decisions made through the delegation to the Managing Director

Since Investment Committee’s meeting on the 13 March 2019, decisions
regarding the following schemes has been exercised. This decision was made
though the delegation to the Combined Authority’s Managing Director following
a recommendation from Combined Authority’s Programme Appraisal Team. In
order for a decision to be made through a delegation to the Managing Director,
the scheme must remain within the assurance tolerances that have been
approved at an earlier decision point. All the schemes outlined below have
remained within their approved delegations unless stated otherwise below.

Elland Station and Access Package

The scheme involves provision of a new railway station and park and ride car
park on the Calder Valley Line for the town of Elland and surrounding area on
a site adjacent to the A629 and close to Lowfields Business Park, plus a
package of complementary walking, cycling and public realm enhancements to
connect the station to the existing land uses.

The expected outputs and benefits of the scheme are a new station at Elland,
an associated 166 space car park and an access package to facilitate
pedestrian and cyclist access by linking the station to the town centre and
other nearby sources of demand.

The scheme received approval from the Combined Authority at decision point
2 in June 2017. This approval, made by the Combined Authority’s Managing
Director on 29 March 2019, was for decision point 3 (outline business case)
and for work to commence on activity 4 (full business case). Development
costs of £1.3 million (rail station at £884,595 and the access package at
£415,405)

Future approvals are made in accordance with the approval pathway and
approval route including at decision point 4 through recommendation to
Investment Committee and approval to the Combined Authority.

Raising Aspirations

The Raising Aspirations School Pilot Scheme will involve conducting a pilot at
schools with high numbers of disadvantaged pupils and / or with an intake of
pupils from the most deprived wards of the Leeds City Region. Grants will be
awarded to schools / colleges to support an increase in activity to raise
aspirations amongst disadvantaged pupils by strengthening engagement with
employers, widening pupil’s experiences of jobs beyond their home
communities and engagement with young role models working in priority
sectors. The Combined Authority has been delivering a highly regarded
Enterprise in Education service since 2015 with a universal offer in place and
is currently working with 90% of Leeds City Region’s secondary schools and
colleges. This pilot provides a unique opportunity to address ‘cold spots’
through a fund only available to schools and colleges in order to design
solutions for the most disadvantaged communities.

34



2.74

2.75

7.1

The expected outputs, benefits and inclusive growth of the scheme include
enabling schools to meet the eight Gatsby Career Benchmarks of good
practice, an enhanced model of enterprise education directly to 3,500 most
disadvantaged learners, engagement of an additional 20 employers to deliver
6,000 encounters and the sharing of best practice to help reach 18,000
disadvantaged learners. Evidence shows that where learners have more
opportunities to engage with employers they are less likely to be unemployed,
and more likely earn more than their peers as they are enabled to make better
informed choices about their next steps in education, training or employment.

The scheme received approval from the Combined Authority at decision point
2 in February 2019. This approval, made by the Combined Authority’s
Managing Director on 29 March 2019, was for decision point 5 (full business
case with finalised costs) for a total project value of £400,000 to be funded by
the Combined Authority from the secured business rates pool funding and for
work to commence on activity 6 (delivery).

Financial implications

The report seeks endorsement to expenditure from the available Combined
Authority funding as set out in this report.

Legal implications

The payment of funding to any recipient will be subject to a funding agreement
being in place between the Combined Authority and the organisation in
question.

Staffing implications

A combination of Combined Authority and local Partner Council project,
programme and portfolio management resources are or are in the process of
being identified and costed for within the schemes in this report.

External consultees

Where applicable scheme promoters have been consulted on the content of
this report.

Recommendations
Transport Hubs and Connecting Communities
That the Investment Committee recommends to the Combined Authority that:

(i) The Transport Hubs Improvement and Public Transport Access scheme
proceeds through decision point 3 and work commences on activity 5 (full
business case with finalised costs).

(i)  An indicative approval to the total project value of £8.905 million is given
from the Leeds Public Transport Investment Programme with full approval
to spend being granted once the scheme has progressed through the

35



7.2

7.3

(iif)

assurance process to decision point 5 (full business case with finalised
costs).

Future approvals are made in accordance with the approval pathway and
approval route outlined in this report including at decision points 4 and 5
through a delegation to the Combined Authority’s Managing Director
following a recommendation by the Combined Authority’s Programme
Appraisal Team. This will be subject to the scheme remaining within the
tolerances outlined in this report.

Garforth Rail Station

That Investment Committee approves that:

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

The Garforth Rail car park extension scheme proceeds though decision
point 5 (full business case with finalised costs) and work commences on
activity 6 (delivery).

Approval to the total project value of £1,129,278 is given from the West
Yorkshire plus Transport Fund, with approval of £1,059,278 through this
report.

The Combined Authority enters into a Section 56 Rail Funding
Agreement with Arriva Rail North for spend of up to £1,029,278 from the
West Yorkshire plus Transport Fund.

The Combined Authority enters into a Section 278 Funding Agreement
with Leeds City Council for spend up to £30,000 from the West Yorkshire
plus Transport Fund.

Future approvals are made in accordance with the approval pathway and
approval route outlined in this report including at decision point 6 and 7
through a delegation to the Combined Authority’s Director of Delivery
following a recommendation by the Combined Authority’s Programme
Appraisal Team. This will be subject to the scheme remaining within the
tolerances outlined in this report.

Strategic Inward Investment Fund and Digital Inward Investment Fund
Change Request

That Investment Committee approves the following elements of this change
request:

(i)

(ii)

To reallocate £1.5 million of funding from the Strategic Inward Investment
Fund to the Digital Inward Investment Fund, resulting in the revised
expenditure approvals of £10.95 million for Strategic Inward Investment
Fund and £2.5 million for Digital Inward Investment Fund.

To amend the scope of the Digital Inward Investment Fund, by expanding

the eligibility criteria to enable businesses already located in the Leeds
City Region to receive grant support from the programme.

36



8.1

(iif) Future approvals are made in accordance with the approval pathway and
approval route outlined in this report following a recommendation by the
Combined Authority’s Programme Appraisal Team. This will be subject to
the scheme remaining within the tolerances outlined in this report.

Background documents

None as part of this report.

Appendices

Appendix 1 — Background to the report

Appendix 2 — Transport Hubs and Connecting Communities

Appendix 3 — Garforth Rail Station Car Park Extension

37



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

Appendix 1

West
Yorkshire

Combined
Authority

Appendix 1: Background to the report
Information

1.1 This report puts forward proposals for the progression of, and funding for, a
number of schemes for approval by the Combined Authority, following
consideration by the West Yorkshire and York’s Investment Committee. The
Combined Authority will recall that a three stage approach has been
introduced as part of an enhancement to current project management
arrangements, with the requirement that all projects subject to minor
exceptions as detailed in the assurance framework, will as a minimum, need to
formally pass decision point 2 (case paper approval) and 5 (final cost
approval) highlighted below, with the requirement to meet the intervening
activities deemed on a project by project basis.

Activity 1 Activity 2 Activity 3 Activity 4 Activity 5 Activity 6 Activity 7

X3S, | DD, =

/ J

Stage 1: Eligibility Stage 2: Development \ Stage 3: Delivery & Evaluation

1.2  The Programme Appraisal Team (PAT) appraises all schemes at the decision
points. The PAT consists of an independent panel of officers representing
policy, legal, financial, assurance and delivery. The scheme promoters from
our partner councils or partner delivery organisations attend the meeting to
introduce the scheme and answer questions from the panel. The terms of
reference for the PAT are contained within the Leeds City Region Assurance
Framework.

Future assurance and approval route

1.3  The tables for each scheme in the main report outlines the proposed
assurance process and corresponding approval route for the scheme. The
assurance pathway sets out the decision points which the scheme must
progress through and will reflect the scale and complexity of the scheme. The
approval route indicates which committees or officers will make both a
recommendation and approval of the scheme at each decision point. A
delegated decision can only be made by the Managing Director if this has
received prior approval from the Combined Authority.

39



Tolerances

1.4  In order for the scheme to follow the assurance pathway and approval route
that is proposed in this report, it should remain within the tolerances outlined
for each scheme. If these tolerances are exceeded the scheme needs to
return to Investment Committee and/or the Combined Authority for further

consideration.

40



Agenda Iltem 6

Appendix 2
Name of Scheme: Transport Hubs and Public Transport Access Schemes

PMO Scheme Code: DFT-LPTIP-006e

Lead Organisation: West Yorkshire Combined Authority
Senior Responsible Dave Pearson

Officer:

Lead Promoter Helen Ellerton

Contact:

Case Officer: Asif Abed

Applicable Funding
Stream(s) — Grant or
Loan:

Leeds Public Transport Investment Programme
(Connecting Leeds) — Grant

Predominantly Priority 4 — Infrastructure for Growth,
however there are some synergies with other priority
areas:

Growth Fund Priority | priority Area 1 — Growing Businesses
Area (if applicable):
Priority Area 2 — Skilled People, Better Jobs

Priority Area 3 — Clean Energy & Environmental
Resilience

The LPTIP Programme was formally approved by the
Combined Authority Board of 29 June 2017.

Approvals to Date: *This included the Bus Delivery package of workstreams
(within which sit Transport Hubs and Reconnecting
Communities), which secured an indicative allocation of
£27.2 million.

Forecasted Full
Approval Date April 2020
(Decision Point 5):

Forecasted
Completion Date July 2021
(Decision Point 6):

41



To'FaI Scheme Cost £8.905.105

(E):

Combined Authority

Funding (£): £8,905,105

Total other public £0

sector investment (£):

Total other private £0

sector investment (£):

Is this a standalone Yes

Project?

Is this a Programme? | Yes

Is this Project part of | yes — LPTIP Programme > Bus Delivery Package:
an agreed

Programme? Transport Hubs and Reconnecting Communities

Current Assurance Process Activity:

SEERZE FEIE RErE e Stage 3: Delivery & Evaluation

Stage 1: Pipeline Eligibility
Activity 1 Activity 2 Activity 3 Activity 4 Activity 5 Activity 6 Activity 7
FBC with
Case Finalised Close &
Paper ° Costs o Review o

/

Scheme Description:

The Transport Hubs Improvements and Public Transport Access Schemes are a part
of the Transport Hubs and Connecting Communities workstream within the
Connecting Leeds Programme. They will create new facilities or upgrade existing ones
to improve the waiting environment and travel information offer. They will also
enhance connections within and between other public transport hubs and communities
by improving walking and cycling links.

The package is made up of the following schemes:

Scheme Location | Description

e Creation of/widening of footways

Bramley Braml e Reconfiguration of bus shelters and provision
Transport Hub | — amey of echelon bays

e Enhanced bus waiting facilities including real
time information and totem signage

42




e Raised plateau crossing
e Provision of shared foot/cycleway

¢ Wayfinding enhancements for pedestrian
connectivity between bus stops and shopping
centre

¢ New lay-bys and reconfiguration of existing
ones

e Additional upgraded bus stops including real-

. Middleton time information and totem signage
Middleton e
Transport Hub Pgrk  Enhancements to passenger facilities and
Circus wayfinding for pedestrians
e Improved crossing provision
e Shelter reconfiguration
e Signalisation of ring road junction
¢ New covered waiting area with seating, real-
White Rose Beeston time display and totem signage
Transport Hub eesto e Enhancements and wayfinding for pedestrian
connectivity between the bus stops and
shopping centre
¢ Improvements will be made to existing stands
and will include enhanced real-time information
and totem signage
e New bus cage and redefining of existing bus
Compton Road cage
Interchange Harehills | o Footway widening to provide improved access
(Hub) to bus services and improved waiting facilities
e Provision of cycle parking
e Enhancements to passenger facilities and
wayfinding for pedestrian connectivity between
the bus stops and local facilities
Improved facilities on Saxton Road, Richmond
Street, Ellerby Road and Ellerby Lane including
enhanced crossing facilities on the A61:
East _End Park e Dropped kerbs and tactile paving
Wallgng & EastEnd |, On-carriageway advisory cycle lanes, coloured
Cycling Park for delineation across minor junctions
Upgrades .
e Converting footways to a shared foot/cycleway
e Signalised crossings to be upgraded to toucan
crossings
e Raised table
Lincoln Green | Lincoln Improved f_acilities on Lindsey Road/Cromwell
Green Street corridors towards A64:

Walking and

43




Cycling
Upgrades

Provision of shared foot/cycleway

Widening dropped kerbs and tactile paving to
facilitate cycles

Raised table to emphasise pedestrian and
cycle crossing

Cycleway signage

Provision of new tiger crossing and upgrading
existing crossings

Little London

Improved facilities on North Street between Clay
Pit Lane/ A61 and A64(M):

Walking and Little e Advanced cycle stop lines
Sggrlgges London e Dropped kerbs and tactile paving
e Improvements to existing tactile paving
¢ New footways
Enhanced walking and cycling provision between
Pudsey Bus Station and Rail Station:
Pudsey e Footway extension and widening
Walking and Pudsey e Implementation of dropped kerbs and tactile
Cycling Links paving
e Provision of shared foot/cycleway
e Additional lighting columns,
e Maintenance of vegetation
Improved facilities on Sharp Lane, Leeds Road
and A654:
¢ Widening of footways
Sl [ o] . ¢ Raised tables
Walking and Eggg‘ * Implementation of dropped kerbs and tactile
Cycling Links paving

Provision of shared cycle/footway
Advanced cycle stopline

Surface treatment to delineate cycle lane
Bridleway widening and resurfacing

The map below outlines the location of the schemes across the Leeds District:

44




=% W A5 e arr e G el S
N Lo
® Bramley Transport Hub
White Rose Transport Hub
® Compton Road Interchange b /'
@ Middleton Transport Hub 9 ﬁ\

i . . \ . \ o
Lincoln Green Walking and Cycling Upgrades e S f\/

Pudsey Walking and Cycling Links \ ’X
East End Park Walking and Cycling Upgrades i

Robin Hood Walking and Gycling Links

Little London Walking and Cycling Upgrades

dings (1000205213 2017

S, Infermap, INCREMERT PINRCan Esr Jaoan. W) ks China (Hong Kong), Esil Korea Esn (Thalanct), NGCC, i
r Communicy. g

Business Case Summary:

Strategic Case

The Transport Hubs Improvements and Public Transport Access
Schemes are part of the Transport Hubs and Connecting
Communities work stream within Connecting Leeds. This is seeking
to improve connectivity between Leeds Communities, the city
centre and key destinations by delivering upgrades to existing
transport hubs and to walking and cycling links. The key aim of this
work stream is to extend the benefits of the infrastructure
improvements being delivered on the core corridors to local
communities.

The substantial increase in travel demand, along with rising car
ownership, has resulted in increased congestion levels and delays,
and reduced reliability for all highway users.

Without scheme delivery, the associated problems of congestion
will worsen. Buses will become more unreliable and trains more
overcrowded. Economic growth will be slower. To prevent this,
investment is needed to improve the efficiency of the existing
capacity and increase the capacity of the transport system.
Responding to the approaches set out in the policies dictates a

45




solution in which public transport is improved and expands its reach
to accommodate a growing demand and ensure an equitable
system. To increase patronage and provide an enhanced service to
existing users the public transport network needs to be punctual,
reliable, safe and provide good information before and during the
journey.

The project forms part of the Connecting Leeds Programme, which
will contribute to all four priority areas of the Strategic Economic
Plan:

Priority Area 1 — Growing Businesses
Priority Area 2 — Skilled People, Better Jobs
Priority Area 3 — Clean Energy & Environmental Resilience

Priority Area 4 — Infrastructure for Growth

Commercial A critical reason for investment is because there are very high

Case levels of congestion, poor public transport accessibility and
declining bus patronage, which facilitate the need to encourage
shift to more sustainable modes of transport. The Leeds Transport
Conversation showed that 51% of those who usually drive to work
wanted to change to a more sustainable mode.

Economic The project will deliver against the scheme's objectives and critical

Case success factors, and is forecast to:

e Provide localised congestion relief

e Improve access to development sites

e Improve access to employment for non-car users
e Improve access by walking, cycling, bus and rail

e Reduce car travel, leading to lower greenhouse gas
emissions and improved air quality

e Result in minor reductions in car traffic and, consequently,
small reductions in accidents
The preferred option provides significant improvements to walk,
cycle, bus and rail trips and will encourage modal switch from the
car. It will provide significant health and congestion benefits and
maintains costs within the current allocation for the scheme. It is
likely to provide the best value for money of the options assessed

The economic assessment shows that the scheme is predicted to
provide high value for money for the preferred option, with a Benefit
to Cost ratio of 2.33.

Financial Case

The project requires 100% funding from the Combined Authority to
deliver the schemes. The project costs for the preferred option total
£8.905 million - these costs are based on design and feasibility

46




work to date. The delivery element of the scheme is supported by a
more detailed costs plan. The scheme costs included a QRA
allocation of £217,144 and 10% contingency.

Management
Case

West Yorkshire Combined Authority is the scheme promoter and is
leading on the overall project management of the scheme.

The delivery of this project will be managed by the Bus Delivery
Board. This group is responsible for providing strategic direction to
the project; representing the interests of the business case, those
who will receive the benefits of the project and those responsible
for supplying the project outputs.

Management of the delivery of the packages will be divided
between West Yorkshire Combined Authority and Leeds City
Council according to expertise and delivery. It is anticipated that the
package is delivered in its entirety by the Connecting Leeds
Delivery Partner, Leeds City Council will act as the Project
Manager and West Yorkshire Combined Authority as the Senior
User.

The project follows the PRINCE 2 project methodology. A Benefits
Realisation plan and a Monitoring and Evaluation plan have both
been submitted and will be further refined during full business case.

Key stakeholder groups have been engaged, for example through
the Leeds Transport Conversation and Leeds Community
Committees. A further engagement period with the relevant
stakeholders will take place before the submission of the full
business case.

It is anticipated that all schemes will be delivered by March 2021.

47




Location map:

The following location map shows the scheme in relation to the other Combined
Authority funded schemes in the surrounding area.

A1620 Leeds Northern
Outer Ring Road

‘ ’ — N Agiilorth, -
-~ |Transport Hubs and Connecting Communities [ = 3t &

5
Improvements, Leeds \ PR T e

Pudsey walking A647/Bucpgniey N\ Bilrley TN 2~ : Compton Road

&Ging gnorgy Bramley \ L(-;eds s Lt LongdLincoln Green Interchange Killingbeek
g OINCON s < walkin:

upgrade\“ 2 ~— Transport Hub e ‘Alioviation Little London g

& A
— walking cycl;pg Jfcycling upgrade
~AB47 Dawsons Saieme upgrade

/ Cormer — . V 8 T [ 4 In(grgraie‘d‘vw ofts
Roundabout SN - X\ A Station =5
- # ArmTE mley: o9

orpe
- : L AE P’ y
fess j TR Gyratory’ MeSierplan N / ]
oy Newortey (NN b
T . “East'End'Park walking 4

~
£ X cycling upgrade ¢
H \

~
7 \ .
4 | AG'IS Bus Institute for High Speed
\ 1 i,
South East NewFarid / { Beeston H Priority Railways a:‘g SYS}t__Ie‘": e
Bradford { Corridor Leeds, Knowsthorpe  h edratior
Link Road o Y \ urt
p ; et Ca
\ ~~
s ;. Leeds
\ \ “Inland Portr |
Mirfield to geliejsle A (Stourton)*
Che DEWsbury toy d
Gidersome _ Leeds (M2D20), N
M g ) 1 7
> ] 3 " Robin Hood
White Rose E
/' dransport & Middleton walking cycling
S Hub, W Transport G Jupgrade
” \ Hub hwell
5 Moy \ Middle
ork Br f \ i
\
N\ N
%1 centimeter = 0.7 kilometers Araen EBLigh

Birstall._y*”* =) Op“e’ﬁ's‘tr“e‘etl\‘lap (and) contributors, CE-BY-SA

Please note, depending on the level of scheme development the location and scope
of the schemes indicated here are indicative only.

For further information on Combined Authority schemes across the Leeds City
Region please refer to: https://www.westyorks-ca.gov.uk/economy/leeds-city-region-
infrastructure-map/

48


https://www.westyorks-ca.gov.uk/economy/leeds-city-region-infrastructure-map/
https://www.westyorks-ca.gov.uk/economy/leeds-city-region-infrastructure-map/

Agenda Iltem 6

Appendix 3
Scheme Summary
Name of scheme: Garforth Rail Station Car Park Extension
PMO scheme code: WYTF-PA4-039I
Lead organisation: West Yorkshire Combined Authority
Senior responsible Melanie Corcoran
officer:

Lead promoter contact: | Sara Brook

Case officer: Asif Abed

Applicable funding
stream(s) — Grant or West Yorkshire plus Transport Fund
Loan:

Growth Fund Priority

Area (if applicable): Priority Area 4 Infrastructure for Growth

5 April 2018 Combined Authority

Approvals to date: Decision Point 2 indicative approval of £825,000 scheme
costs, with approval of £45,000 project development costs to
full business case with finalised costs (decision point 5).

Forecasted full
approval date (decision | Combined Authority Investment Committee 8 May 2019
point 5):

Forecasted completion

date (decision point 6): DEEE9Ey 200

Total scheme cost (£): £1.129 million

Combined Authority £1.129 million Transport Fund

funding (£):

Total other public

sector investment (£): U0
Total other private £0.00

sector investment (£):

Is this a standalone project? | Yes

Is this a programme? No

Is this project part of an

agreed programme? Yes - Rail Park & Ride Programme Phase 1

49



Current Assurance Process Activity:

Stage 1: Pipeline Eligibility

Activity 1 Activity 2

FBC with
Case b Finalised
A Paper a T & Costs

ptago 2-Fipslino Dovelopment Stage 3: Delivery & Evaluation
Activity 3 Activity 4 Activity 5 Activity 6 Activity 7
Close &
- Review o

D] | /

Scheme Description:

The reconfiguration and extension of the existing car park at Garforth Rail Station to
increase the number of parking spaces. The project will deliver the following:

e 85 additional parking spaces increasing overall parking capacity from 252 to 337,

within which

blue badge bays see an increase from 5 to 16 spaces.

e CCTV and LED energy efficient lighting
¢ Enhanced access to reduce on site congestion

e Electrical du

cting to future proof for electric vehicle charging bays

Business Case Su

mmary:

Strategic Case

Garforth is a busy commuter rail station in East Leeds and its car park
is regularly full by 07.30am. This leads to negative impacts including
on-street parking outside residents’ houses. It also results in reduced
accessibility to the rail network as research indicates that car drivers,
unable to park, will continue their full journey by car.

Garforth fulfils the criteria of Phase 1 in that there is no land acquisition
required and the scheme will be delivered within the rail boundary and
completed before the Growth Deal deadline of March 2021.

The strategic case details how the scheme meets the objectives of key
overriding strategies including the LCC Core Strategy, the Strategic
Economic Plan Priority 4 Infrastructure for Growth, the Transport
Strategy 2040, and RailPlan 7.

Lessons learned from previous schemes includes the emphasis on a
phasing plan as part of construction.

Commercial
Case

The case for change is demonstrated through the negative impacts
that are occurring as a result of insufficient capacity in the car park and
the demand forecast analysis indicating an immediate shortfall of 50
spaces.

Procurement of the construction for the Garforth scheme is via the
Northern framework and the tender was based on price 50%,
programme 35% and previous experience 15%. Eric Wright
successfully won the tender on price and has already successfully
completed schemes for the Combined Authority at South EImsall and
Mirfield A.

In relation to good growth, 45% of the value of materials and sub-
contractors will be sourced locally, this rises to 61% within a 55 mile
radius. Eric Wright has a Corporate Apprentice scheme and

50




educational scheme to encourage the next generation into a wide
range of opportunities presented by the construction industry.

Economic Case

As part of option selection, "do nothing" was discounted for the
following reasons:

e Apparent negative impacts of on street parking

e Reduced rail accessibility

e A need to support a 37% growth in rail passengers predicted
by 2027.

¢ Increased housing investment in East Leeds and surrounding
villages that don’t have rail accessibility.

The Benefit Cost Ratio (BCR) for the core scenario is 2.9, and under
a low-growth scenario 2.7, so on both occasions judged as high value
for money.

The Environmental Appraisal Summary indicates neutral or slightly
beneficial environmental impacts following scheme delivery.

Financial Case

The rail car park programme secured £30.5 million from the West
Yorkshire plus Transport Fund.

The total cost for this scheme is forecast at £1.129 million based on
tendered costs and includes the following allowances:

10% contractor contingency

7.5% Combined Authority contingency

£10,000 for monitoring and evaluation

£1,000 for communications to rail users while the car park is
not fully open.

Management
Case

This scheme is part of a programme which has already successfully
delivered three car park extensions, at South Elmsall, Fitzwilliam and
Mirfield. The Programme Board is well established with
representatives from the key rail stakeholders and district partners.

This scheme is well supported by the rail industry, Leeds City Council
and local ward members.

The scheme is processed by Network Rail though their Governance
for Railway Investment Projects (GRIP) process, as well as via the
Combined Authority Assurance Framework.

Risk has been either designed out or mitigated and costs included in
the tender and therefore risk has been passed onto the contractor.
Measures are in place to control the key outstanding risks of:

e Access widening: this will be delivered via Leeds City Council
and regular discussions with them and Arriva Rail North are
taking place. The changes will be delivered via a Section 278
and the costs have been included.

e Decant strategy: the car park will be semi-closed and a
minimum 100 parking spaces will be made available
throughout construction, and more when feasible. This still
results in the decanting of up to 150 cars and a joint strategy is
being developed with Arriva Rail North, the Combined
Authority, Leeds City Council and the local ward members.

51




Location map:

The following location map shows the scheme in relation to the other Combined
Authority funded schemes in the surrounding area.

Garforth Rail Station Car Park ¥ &

Garforth
e Rsil Ststion
o At v gk
. Car‘Park

Garforth 2 i

iy

1 centimetar = 0.3 kilomsaters

® CpenSteethap {andj contributors, CC-BY-SA

Please note, depending on the level of scheme development the location and scope
of the schemes indicated here are indicative only.

For further information on Combined Authority schemes across the Leeds City
Region please refer to: https://www.westyorks-ca.gov.uk/economy/leeds-city-region-
infrastructure-map/

52


https://www.westyorks-ca.gov.uk/economy/leeds-city-region-infrastructure-map/
https://www.westyorks-ca.gov.uk/economy/leeds-city-region-infrastructure-map/

Agenda Item 7

West
Yorkshire

Combined

Authority

Report to:  West Yorkshire and York Investment Committee

Date: 8 May 2019
Subject: Leeds City Collgg_e_ Group

Proposed Acquisition of Harrogate College
Director: Melanie Corcoran, Director of Delivery

Author(s):  Nicholas Kiwomya

Is this

a key decision? O Yes No

Is the

decision eligible for call-in by Scrutiny? Yes [ No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information or
appendices?

Yes [ No

If relevant, state paragraph number of Schedule 12A, Local Government
Act 1972, Part 1:

Paragraph 3

1.1

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

Purpose of this report

To seek approval to provide the Combined Authority’s consent to the transfer
of Harrogate College from the Hull College Group into the Leeds City College
Group (currently rebranding to Luminate Education Group).

Information

Leeds City College Group are currently undertaking a rebranding exercise and
are now called the Luminate Education Group.

On 1 December 2016 the Combined Authority approved the full business case
and funding for the Leeds City College, Quarry Hill project. The approval was
for a £33.4 million grant from the Growth Deal, with an in principle agreement

for a loan facility of up to £8.8 million.

On 7 November 2018 the Investment Committee recommended the approval

of the loan facility of £6.5 million. A loan agreement was entered into between
the parties and the funding has been drawn down.

53




24.

2.5.

2.6.

3.1

41

5.1

6.1

7.1

Once completed the Quarry Hill project will deliver 15,000 sgm of new build
floor space together with 6,000 sgm refurbished floor space to the College’s
existing Park Lane campus, and will include disposal of a number of assets.

Construction work for the nine storey development began in July 2017. The
new Quarry Hill campus will become the college’s Creative and Digital Arts
and Health and Social Sciences departments. It will also house new space for
the expansion of Leeds College of Music (LCoM) with recording studio
facilities for music courses. Construction work is expected to be complete by
August 2019, ready for use in the 2019/20 academic year.

Leeds City College Group is now seeking to acquire Harrogate College from
the Hull College Group and this requires the consent of the Combined
Authority as a condition of the existing loan agreement. An update on the
acquisition is outlined in exempt Appendix 1.

Financial Implications

The financial implications and the risks are explained in the exempt Appendix
1 and Appendix 2.

Legal Implications

The information contained in Appendix 1 and Appendix 2 is exempt under
paragraph 3 of Part 1 to Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as it
contains information relating to the financial or business affairs of any
particular person (including the authority holding that information). It is
considered that the public interest in maintaining the content of the appendices
as exempt outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information as
publication could prejudice current and future decision making.

Staffing Implications

There are not considered to be any Combined Authority staffing implications
arising from this report.

External Consultees
The College has been consulted.
Recommendations

The Investment Committee agree the recommendations as set out in section 6
of exempt Appendix 1.

Background Documents

None.

54



Appendices

Exempt Appendix 1 — Luminate Education Group (formerly Leeds City College
Group) - Proposed acquisition of Harrogate College

Exempt Appendix 2 — Cashflow — March 2019

55



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A Appendix 1

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

57



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A Appendix 2

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

59



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Meeting of the West Yorkshire and York Investment Committee held on 12 April 2019
	5 Capital Programme Update
	Item 5 - Appendix 1
	Sheet1


	6 Capital Spending and Project Approvals
	Item 6 - Appendix 1 - Background to the Report
	Item 6 - Appendix 2 - Transport Hubs & Public Transport Access
	Item 6 - Appendix 3 - Garforth Rail Station

	7 Leeds City College Group Proposed Acquisition of Harrogate College
	Item 7 - Exempt Appendix 1
	Item 7 - Exempt Appendix 2


